
 

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers  
are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

APOLOGIES Committee Services  DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, 
PERFORMANCE AND 
GOVERNANCE 
Paul Dodson  

Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  

    
   16 January 2023 

Dear Councillor 

 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

on TUESDAY 24 JANUARY 2023 at 7.30 pm 

 

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon. 

 
Please Note: All meetings will be live streamed on the Council’s YouTube channel for those wishing 
to observe remotely. Public participants wishing to speak remotely at a meeting can continue to do 
so via Microsoft Teams. 
 
To register your request to speak please submit a Public Access form (to be submitted by 12noon 
on the working day before the Committee meeting). All requests will be considered on a first-come, 
first-served basis. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:  

CHAIRMAN Councillor M W Helm 

VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor P L Spenceley 

COUNCILLORS Miss A M Beale 
B S Beale MBE 
V J Bell 
M S Heard 
B B Heubner 
C Mayes 
S J N Morgan 
C P Morley 

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u


 

Page 2 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

AGENDA 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

TUESDAY 24 JANUARY 2023 
 
1. Chairman's Notices   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 

on 26 October 2022, (copy enclosed). 
 

4. Disclosure of Interest   
 
 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other 

Registrable interests and Non-Registrable Interests relating to items of business on 
the agenda having regard to paragraph 9 and Appendix B of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.  
 
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).  
 

5. Public Participation   
 
 To receive the views of members of the public of which prior notification in writing has 

been received (no later than noon on the Tuesday prior to the day of the meeting). 
  
Should you wish to submit a question please completed the online form at 
www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation.        
   
 

6. Review of Scrutiny Workplan Item - Planning Decision-Making  (Pages 9 - 22) 
 
 To consider the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group, (copy enclosed). 

 
7. Potential Scrutiny Workplan Item - Planning Enforcement  (Pages 23 - 28) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed). 
 

8. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 
urgent   

 
9. Exclusion of the Public and Press   
 
 To resolve that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 2 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test. 
 

 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation


Page 3 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

10. Notice of Motion Referral - Conduct Issue  (Pages 29 - 32) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed). 
 

 

 
 

NOTICES 
 
Recording of Meeting 
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 
part of this meeting held in open session.   
 
Fire 
In the event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green 
running man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  
Please gather there and await further instruction. 
 
Health and Safety 
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.   
 
Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV) 
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV. 

 
 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES of 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 OCTOBER 2022 

PRESENT 

Vice-Chairman 
(In the Chair) 

Councillor  P L Spenceley 

Councillors P L Spenceley, Miss A M Beale, B B Heubner, C Mayes, 
S J N Morgan and C P Morley 

319. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman welcomed everyone present and went through some general 
housekeeping arrangements for the meeting.   

320. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors V J Bell, M S Heard and M W 
Helm. 

321. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

RESOLVED by assent that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28 
July 2022 be approved and confirmed. 

322. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST  

There were none. 

323. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No requests had been received. 

324. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORKPLAN ITEMS AND RECENT SCRUTINY REQUEST 
BY A MEMBER  

The Committee considered the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group  
recommending responses and courses of action on a Scrutiny Workplan item and a 
further Member request for a scrutiny item. 

The Chairman introduced the report and took the Committee through the key points. 
She drew Members‘ attention to the conclusions and initial Working Group response to 
the Committee at Appendix A in respect of the scrutiny item arising from recent 
planning appeal decisions and directed at planning decision making. She then invited 
Members to put any questions or comments they had on the report.  

At this point Councillor Heubner proposed that the work outlined in Appendix A be 
referred back to the Working Group for further detailed work, prior to scrutiny by the 

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee and referral to Council and this was seconded by 
Councillor Morgan. 

Following a brief debate the Committee accepted the Working Group’s initial 
findings/conclusions in respect of recommendation (i) and asked for this to be worked 
up in greater detail by the Working Group, for interim consideration by the Committee 
in December. The Committee would then be in a better position to assess how near it 
was to being able to conclude making a response and any recommendations either to 
Council or the relevant Committee, with the aim of a final report to a meeting of the 
Committee by either the week beginning 27/2 or 6/3 next year at the latest. 

With reference to recommendation (ii) in relation to the new requested scrutiny item 
(Councillor Swain) on Planning Enforcement, Councillor Mayes proposed that this item 
be brought back to this Committee providing full information on the process, open and 
closed cases, an overview of both current and future resources together with the 
impact on Planning, this was seconded by Councillor Heubner. It was agreed that a full 
report be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in January 2023. 
Councillor Morgan proposed that the report be supported at the meeting by relevant 
Officers, and this was seconded by Councillor Mayes. 

The Chairman then moved the revised recommendations, taking account of the 
proposals and issues raised in the debate and they were agreed by assent as follows: 

RESOLVED 

(i) That the  proposed outline response to the Notice of Motion/Planning Decision 
Making Workplan Item  be worked up in greater detail by the Working Group for 
interim consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, with the aim of 
a final report to a meeting of the Committee by either the week beginning 27/2 
or 6/3 next year at the latest. 

(ii) That in the light of the scrutiny request from Councillor C Swain the Committee 
agreed a full report be received by Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
January 2023, covering the aspects detailed above and supported by relevant 
officers. 

325. STAFF EXIT QUESTIONNAIRES 

The Committee considered a reference and recommendation from the Performance, 
Governance and Audit Committee (PGA) at its meeting on 29 September 2022 that the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews outcomes from Staff Exit Questionnaires as 
part of its Work Programme.  

Following a brief debate Members agreed to this. 

RESOLVED that the Committee agreed to review outcomes from Staff Exit 
Questionnaires as part of the work Programme. 

326. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 
DECIDES ARE URGENT  

There were none. 

Page 6



 

327. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

RESOLVED that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.  

328. CYBER SECURITY UPDATE 

The Committee considered a reference and recommendation from the Performance, 
Governance and Audit Committee (PGA) at its meeting on 29 September 2022 that it 
reviews the BDO report and technical report on Cyber Security (Appendix 1) circulated 
with the agenda..  

RESOLVED that the reference and recommendation from PGA is accepted, and the 
item is added to the Scrutiny Workplan to come back to a meeting of the Committee 
rather than the Working Group. 

The meeting closed at 8.25 pm. 

P L SPENCELEY 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP 

to 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 JANUARY 2023 
 
REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORKPLAN ITEM - PLANNING DECISION-MAKING 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 To present to the Committee the Working Group’s further report together with 1.1

recommended courses of action for the Committee to consider or scrutinise in further 
detail should it be considered necessary. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the Committee considers the interim response and recommendations of the 
Working Group for report back to the Council or reference to another Committee as 
appropriate, or defining the scope for actual scrutiny and engaging the Working 
Group if any further work is felt to be required. 

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 This scrutiny workplan item derives from a Motion by Councillor A S Fluker which 3.1

was referred by Council to this Committee.  An associated reference from Council in 
July 2022 on Planning Decision-Making was added to the workplan item. 
 

 At the last meeting of the Committee in October, an outline response from the 3.2
Overview and Scrutiny Working Group (O&S) was received and the Committee 
accepted the Working Group’s initial findings/conclusions and asked for this to be 
worked up in greater detail by the Working Group, for interim consideration by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in December 2022.  It was felt that the Committee 
would then be in a better position to assess how near it was to being able to 
conclude making a response and any recommendations either to Council or the 
relevant Committee, with the aim of a final report to a meeting of the Committee in 
February or March 2023.  Members of the Committee were updated as to the on-
going deliberations of the Working Group with a view to a meeting being held in 
January 2023 to tie in with a target date set by the Committee for a response on 
another workplan item. 
 

 The Working Group’s further report on the issues raised by the motion and 3.3
associated reference from the Council is at APPENDIX A.  Building on the earlier 
initial conclusions, a clear set of recommended initiatives and courses of action is 
now presented for the Committee’s consideration.  These are as follows: 

 Constitutional intervention or break upon overturn of Planning Officer’s 
recommendation – alternative pathways. 

 Planning Appeals Protocol refresh with strengthening of Member involvement. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 Member Training – improved opportunities for bespoke and specialised 
training with a single planning committee. (Although the focus for this was 
around Member Training, the recent decision of the Council in relation to Area 
Planning Committee structure is noted). 

 Officer reports on planning applications – review of format and introduction of 
technical presentations. 

 New protocol on planning decision making. 
 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 In line with the agreed process for reviewing Overview and Scrutiny workplan items, 4.1

the feedback and recommendations from the recent Overview and Scrutiny Working 
Group meetings are presented for the Committee’s consideration. 
  

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 Robust overview and scrutiny work and learning from what comes out of it 5.1

contributes to the performance and value theme of the Corporate Plan.  
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – Seeking to strike a better balance between the 

speed of decision making and the quality of decisions will have a positive 
impact on applicants for planning permission as users of the service, and also 
Council tax payers in general in contributing to the overall costs of the 
service. 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None.  

(iii) Impact on Risk – A move towards improved quality through more objective 
and evidence-based decision making will potentially reduce the risk of the 
award of costs against the Authority. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – None.  

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None. 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None.  
 
(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – None.  

 
 
Enquiries to: Cheryl Hughes, Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager.  

Page 10



APPENDIX A 

1 
 

SCRUTINY OF BURNHAM ON CROUCH APPEALS/COSTS DECISION AND 

PLANNING DECISION MAKING 

 

 

Background and context 

1. The Committee has agreed to add the issues raised in the recent Motion to Council from 

Councillor A S Fluker to its scrutiny workplan.  The terms of the motion were as follows: 

 With reference to the Costs Decision Notice regarding the planning appeal 
determined on 21st March 2022 Ref/APP/X1545/W/213283478 Land 250M North of 
16A Maldon Road, Burnham on Crouch Essex.  
Since losing the appeal the Council has agreed to pay the appellants costs of 
£230,000. The Council’s own legal fees are £30,000. These costs will be met by 
Council Taxpayers.  
Motion:  
1. That Council considers the Inspectors Notice and in particular paragraph 18 and 
takes the appropriate action.  
2. That Council considers whether the ‘unreasonable behaviour’ of members in 
determining the application resulted in the appeal being lost and a costs of £230,000 
being paid to the appellant and takes the appropriate action.  
3. That Council considers, bearing in mind members overturned the Planning 
Officers recommendation to approve the application, why no members attended the 
appeal to evidence and give weight to their decision.  
4. That Council considers why members went against the Officers decision to 
approve the application, the advice that Council was unlikely to win any appeal and 
considers why under those circumstances the appeal was defended at a cost of 
£30,000.  
 

2. The background facts to the consideration and determination of the application in 

question are as follows: 

 

 Application in question originally determined by District Planning Committee in 

June 2021 – a Committee consisting of all Members of the Council and charged 

with making strategic planning decisions 

Summary of issues for further consideration and report to the 

Committee 

 Constitutional intervention or break upon overturn of Planning Officer’s 

recommendation – alternative pathways – paras 13-16 

 Planning Appeals Protocol refresh with strengthening of Member 

involvement – paras 17-18 

 Member Training – improved opportunities for bespoke and specialised 

training with a single planning committee – paras 19-20  

 Officer reports on planning applications – review of format and technical 

presentations – paras 21-26 

 New protocol on planning decision making 

  

 

Page 11



APPENDIX A 

2 
 

 25 of the 31 Councillors were present – with one abstention, all Members present 

agreed to refuse the application contrary to Officers’ recommendation of approval 

 The matter was brought back to the Committee in January 2022 in view of the 

extreme difficulty Officers had in progressing the subsequent appeal, and the 

likely conflict there would have been between the professional Officer’s proof of 

evidence and the representation of the Council’s defence of its decision including 

possible Member involvement 

 The decision on review to accept the appellant’s ‘without prejudice’ offer to 

resubmit the application for fresh consideration, and if approved the outstanding 

appeal would be withdrawn and no application for costs made.  Despite this 

however, the appellant decided to continue with the appeal. 

 The appeal was upheld and an award of costs made.  Despite the interim review 

by the Committee, the Planning Inspector’s conclusions and decisions were 

made on the basis of the wrongfulness of the original decision, and the Council 

seeking to continue to defend such a weak position.  

 

 

3. A relevant extract from the Inspector’s Costs Decision is as follows: 

16. The original decision of the Council was therefore unreasonable, both on the merits 

of the scheme and also because the Council did not properly apply the ‘tilted balance’. 

By the time of the appeal, and throughout the appeal process, it was clear that the 

Council understood that the ‘tilted balance’ was engaged. However, it did not take the 

next logical step, which was to withdraw from defending its indefensible position, and 

instead proceeded to try and claim that the appeal should fail, even when applying the 

‘tilted balance’. This is an untenable and unreasonable position in light of the substantial 

benefits of the proposal, which were agreed with the Council, and the minor harm to 

character and appearance as the only meaningful harm. Overall, the Council’s actions 

have resulted in the delaying of development which should clearly have been permitted.  

17. The proposal should not have been refused in the first place, and should not have 

then been actively defended at appeal. This is particularly galling in light of the Council’s 

agreed housing land supply of only 2.92 years. It is failing, very significantly, to secure 

the 5-year supply of housing land for which it should be striving. In addition, the appeal 

proposal is for two types of residential accommodation, older persons and affordable 

housing, that are most in need in the District, as set out in the Council’s own Maldon 

District Local Housing Needs Assessment Final Report, dated May 2021. The need for 

both types of accommodation is acute and growing.  

Conclusion  

18. Taking all of the above into account, I therefore find that unreasonable behaviour by 

the Council resulting in unnecessary or wasted expense, as described in the PPG, has 

been demonstrated and that a full award of costs is justified.  

 

Additional scrutiny item 

4. Added to this scrutiny item is the reference from the July meeting of the Council to look 

at Planning decision-making, the Council having emphasised the need for more objective 

and evidence-based decision-making in the future.  This arises from an appeal decision 

Page 12



APPENDIX A 

3 
 

and an award of costs in relation to application ref 20/0166/FUL at land south of 

Charwood and east of Orchard House, Stoney Hills, Burnham on Crouch.  

  

5. Application 20/0166/FUL had originally been refused by the South-Eastern Area 

Planning Committee in February 2021, contrary to the Officers’ recommendation, and the 

refusal was maintained on review by the District Planning Committee in June 2021, albeit 

for a reason at variance with that previously agreed by the Area Planning Committee. 

The reason for refusal agreed by the Area Committee on application 20/0166/FUL was - 

 

 
1. The proposed development, due to its style, design and bulk would result in a 
dominant and contrived development which would result in undue harm to the 
character and appearance of the surrounding area and the amenity of neighbouring 
sites, contrary to policies S1, S2, D1, H4 of the Maldon District Local Development 
Plan. 
2. It is considered that the development would result in demonstrable harm to the 
residential amenity of the occupiers of the neighbouring dwelling to the west, 
Orchard House, contrary to policies D1 and H4 of the Maldon District Local 
Development Plan. 

 

A decision notice based on the reason agreed by the Area Committee was however not 

issued and the application was put to the District Planning Committee for determination 

afresh with a recommendation of approval.  This was not accepted and the reason for 

refusal agreed by the District Planning Committee, and based on objection raised at that 

meeting and having regard to Officer advice, was as follows: 

1. The design of the dwelling is considered to be incongruous and contrived which 
would cause harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area, 
contrary to policy D1 of the Local Development Plan (LDP). 

2. The proposal would result in demonstrable harm to the residential amenity of the 
western neighbour of Orchard House by resulting in a harmful loss of outlook 
from this neighbouring dwelling, contrary to policy D1 of the LDP. 

  

6. Application 20/0166/FUL proceeded to appeal, although in the District Planning 

Committee’s reasoning the demonstrable harm to residential amenity was specified, the 

appeal Inspector felt that the reasons had not been substantiated.  A relevant extract 

from the Inspector’s Costs Decision is as follows: 

10.As will be seen from my decision issued on this case, I have decided in favour of 
the appellant on the substantive question of whether the proposed development 
should be permitted. As will be seen from my decision, on the issue of design I noted 
that there was no specific criticism by the council, and for my part I considered that 
the proposed dwelling relates well to the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area, making a positive contribution to it. This judgement might not be 
shared by others, but any alternative view must be supported by reasons. That was 
not done in this case.  
11.Again, in relation to the second issue, the council has not explained how the 
alleged loss of outlook to the Orchard House occupants would result from the appeal 
proposal, and I was left to conjecture what form of loss might be involved. 
12.I concluded that both refusal reasons in the case had not been substantiated, and 
did not form any justification for the refusal of planning permission. 
13.I therefore find that unreasonable behaviour resulting in unnecessary or wasted 

expense, as described in the Planning Practice Guidance, has been demonstrated 

and that a full award of costs is justified. 

Page 13



APPENDIX A 

4 
 

 

 

Proposed recommendations and options for learning outcomes 

7. The Committee on 24 October 2022 asked that the Working Group’s initial conclusions  

be developed in greater detail to enable it to be in a position to assess the potential for 

making a response to the Council or recommendations to other Committees.  The 

Working Group has given further consideration to these and added further items as 

follows - 

 

 A constitutional intervention or brake to enable Planning and Legal Officers to 

review the implications of Officer overturns on strategic and other applications 

before a decision is finalised. 

 The review and promotion afresh of the Planning Appeals Protocol and also the 

Planning Guidance on decision making set out in the Constitution. 

 Identification of further Member training issues. 

 A review of the style/approach and language content of Officer reports on 

planning applications to give greater clarity and balance of argument to assist 

Members – supplemented by, 

o The concept of technical briefings on the more complex applications prior 

to the actual committee meeting, and 

o The preparation of a separate glossary document for Members 

assistance, covering a range of technical terms and acronyms 

 The preparation and adoption of a new single protocol on Planning Decision-

Making as the logical conclusion of this scrutiny exercise 

 

Constitutional intervention or brake upon overturning the Officer’s recommendation 

 

8. The context for this is the need to strike a balance between the speed of determination 

and quality of decisions and being able to substantiate the overturning of an Officer’s 

professional recommendation, understanding the risks involved.  Depending on the 

precise mechanism chosen, the concept of being ‘minded to approve/refuse comes into 

play, in other words the determining Committee giving an indication of its proposed 

decision and reasons for it, alongside a clearly stated reason for actually overturning the 

Officer’s recommendation.  The Probity in Planning document produced jointly by the 

Local Government Association and the Planning Advisory Service originally in 2013 and 

updated in 2019 advocates either adjourning for reasons to be discussed and agreed by 

the Committee and where there was concern about the validity of reasons possible 

deferment to another meeting to have the putative reasons tested and discussed. 

 

9. Further context is provided by various research and advice papers.  In 2018 Lichfields, 

the planning and development consultancy, produced a paper entitled ‘Refused for good 

reason?’ which examined the tensions between the delivery of housing and quality of 

decision-making on applications.  Among the recommendations were that Councils 

should seek independent advice where is disagreement between the planning officer and 

members on a technical issue, and that there should be provision for a ‘cooling off’ 

period to enable advice to be sought about appeal prospects before a refusal is 

confirmed. 

Page 14



APPENDIX A 

5 
 

 

10. As the Nolan Committee on Public Life report acknowledged, there is nothing intrinsically 

wrong if planning committees do not invariably follow the advice of officers.  Planning 

officers exist to advise, and committees are entitled to reach their own decisions by 

attaching different weight to the various planning criteria.  Councillors must still however 

make their decision within the legal and policy framework that exists, including the NPPF 

and the Local Development Plan. 

 

11. An advice paper produced by Cornerstone Barristers in July 2020 looked in detail at best 

practice for ensuring the planning committees are advised of the potential risks on 

appeal and of a costs award.  In a Court of Appeal case involving Babergh DC in 2019 

the Court emphasised the importance of planning authorities not allowing the potential 

consequences of a decision for their own resources to influence the exercise of planning 

judgement.  In a case involving Tonbridge & Malling BC in 2020 this issue of taking 

immaterial considerations into account was explored.  While it was appropriate for 

officers to advise members on the potential cost and reputational implications of refusing 

permission, this should not be confused with or taken into account as material 

considerations in the planning analysis or in the exercise of planning judgement.  Any 

such advice should be provided distinct from the planning assessment. 

 

12. Planning Policy Guidance states that the aim of the costs regime is in part to encourage 

local planning authorities to properly exercise their development management 

responsibilities, to rely only on reasons for refusal which will stand up to scrutiny on the 

planning merits of the case (supported by robust evidence), not to add to development 

costs through avoidable delay.   

 

13. This Council’s own adopted Planning Guidance included in the Constitution reflects 

much of the key messages set out above, and states that “Depending on the 

circumstances and complexity of the case it may be that Officers will need to consider 

those implications in greater detail and report back.  Any proposal for deferment must be 

disposed of ahead of any conclusion being reached on the decision itself.”   If the 

Committee is clear in all respect as to its reasoning, and Officers are content that the 

reasons can be substantiated and supported through appeal, then an operative decision 

can be made.  In all other respects however, an intervention or brake should be invoked, 

the distinct options would involve one of either – 

 

 Delegation of final decision to Director in consultation with Chairperson/Vice-

Chairperson and Legal Officers with the backstop of reference back to the 

original Committee 

OR 

 The Committee or Director/Legal Officer seeking a deferment for further Planning 

and Legal advice and consideration 

with the Operating Protocols for the Committees, and the Council’s own Planning 

Guidance, as set out in the Constitution, being strengthened accordingly. 

 

14. Clearly the delegation option will give rise to less delay and may result in endorsement 

of the ‘minded-to’ decision, but equally ought to enable the issue of a decision in 

accordance with the Officer’s recommendation if the alternative cannot be substantiated.  

In line with normal delegation principles, the decision here would rest with the Director. 

Page 15



APPENDIX A 

6 
 

 

15. The deferment option will enable a review to be undertaken and reported back to the 

original Committee.  Only those present at the original Committee meeting may vote at 

the subsequent meeting on reference back since it is important that Members are 

present for the entirety of the debate. 

 

16. The Council’s existing planning committee structure (see also para. 20) makes it difficult 

to introduce any other form of intervention or brake in the sense that the Area Planning 

Committees and the District Council are autonomous, save for the fact that the Director 

does have the power to refer an application or ask for an application to be referred to the 

District Planning Committee.  The existence of a single development control committee 

would make it easier for a Referrals Committee to be introduced for the purposes under 

consideration here.  In the absence of that however, the terms of reference/operating 

protocols for the Area Planning Committees could be amended to require all Officer 

overturns to be referred to the District Planning Committee. 

 

17. Where decisions are taken contrary to the Officer’s recommendation it is important to 

consider the role of Members in supporting the Council’s decision (as distinct from the 

Officer’s recommendation, which will be examined) to be defended in the subsequent 

appeal alongside the reasoning for going against the Officer’s recommendation.  This is 

covered in the Planning Appeals Protocol which is appended to the Code of Good 

Practice and Guidance on the conduct of Planning Matters which is included in the 

Council’s Constitution. The document, which is now submitted for review and possible 

adoption afresh, envisages the role and involvement of Members in Planning Appeals as 

good practice – perhaps this should be strengthened to become a requirement.  Equally 

it should reflect practice advice issued by the Royal Town Planning Institute which 

professional planning offices must heed.  This recognises that an officer whose 

professional opinion is quite distinct from the decision to be defended on appeal may not 

be the best expert witness.  It states “It is better to avoid the situation where someone is 

giving evidence that they do not agree with. It is preferable to call someone else, who is in a 

position to speak with conviction about the harm that the scheme would cause or why the 

planning balance should be weighed in favour of refusing the scheme. For example, the Chair of 

the Planning Committee could be called or an external planning consultant could be appointed.” 

 

18. The question of how planning decision making is approached and undertaken ties in with 

the issues raised by the Notice of Motion, and this could even extend to a review of the 

existing arrangements.  The Council has already emphasised the need for more 

objective and evidence-based decision making in the future, and perhaps the relevant 

section of the Planning Guidance document included in the Constitution needs revisiting 

and strengthened.  Equally, pulling together some of the important messages and 

provisions around decision-making into a single protocol document for the Planning 

Committees, and its inclusion in the Constitution and to be referenced on agendas, might 

give added focus. 

 

Training and Committee Structure 

 

19. The identification of further Member training issues to be addressed is vital to this 

process.  Training needs to embrace the important messages and conclusions coming 

out of this scrutiny and which are likely to be cemented in the revision of protocols and 

guidance.  It is not difficult to see that the demands of delivering sufficient and regular 

Page 16



APPENDIX A 

7 
 

training to all Members given their role in planning decision-making would be eased 

somewhat if there was a single Planning/Development Control Committee whose 

Members could be trained in a more specialist way.  It would also ease the burden of 

having to enforce the restriction on voting for those Members whose training was not up 

to date. 

 

20. A wider issue linking to these matters, and further to what is said in para. 16 above, is 

the recent corporate governance audit which highlighted that Members had not properly 

considered the earlier Planning Advisory Service recommendations that had been 

reported to Council. One recommendation pointed to a move to a single 

Planning/Development Control Committee consisting of well-trained Members to replace 

the current Area Planning Committee format which it was felt could lead to inconsistency 

of decision-making and potential challenge. 

 

Officer reports and presentations on planning applications 

 

21. The Working Group has suggested that a review of the style/approach of Officer reports 

on planning applications should be undertaken with a view to a more balanced 

presentation being achieved which would be thought helpful to Members.  It is evident 

that the existing style and approach is consistent with that of other authorities in Essex in 

the sense that reports are led with an executive summary and recommendation, with the 

detailed analysis of the various and material issues, and conclusions following.  It may 

be that unless there is a clear policy objection, very often there is not a balancing of 

issues to be laid out, or rather that any balancing lies firmly on the side of a presumption 

to approve unless material consideration suggest otherwise.  It may then be a question 

of the particular weight to be given to a material consideration.   

 

22. The opportunity should be taken by Officers to look at refreshing the approach to reports, 

in particular the language used and with a view to briefer and summarising content 

without threat to the meaning.  It is emphasised however that reports have to analyse 

planning and legal issues, often straying into quite technical areas and therefore 

technical language.  They therefore have to be sufficiently robust to survive potential 

challenge and therefore the local planning authority’s position in law. 

 

23. The Council receives some very complex and challenging applications that can have 

some very technical challenges for the decision maker to wrestle with when coming to 

the determination of the planning application. It is accepted that the traditional approach 

to presenting items at a Planning Committee, supported by a presentation and an 

Officer’s report, at times might not be the best method to assist Members in their ability 

meaningfully and effectively to engage in the decision-making process. There is the 

potential to allow for a ‘technical’ presentation to Members prior to the Committee 

meeting that may be able to deal with some of the more pertinent and salient questions 

on technical matters. This though would need to be balanced against the need to have 

an effective and transparent debate at the Committee meeting itself and the fact that if a 

Member was not able to attend the pre-meeting they would not be able to debate or vote 

at the decision-making Committee.  Officers should also be asked to ensure that there is 

consistency of approach to their presentations to the Area Planning Committees. 

 

24. The one area of balance which needs to come through in reports and be taken into 

account by Members is what is known as the ‘Tilted Balance’.  In accordance with 

paragraph 11 of the NPPF, decisions should apply a presumption in favour of 

Page 17



APPENDIX A 

8 
 

sustainable development, which for decision-taking means approving development 

proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay, or where there 

are no relevant development plan policies, or these are out-of-date.  This means granting 

permission unless the policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provide a clear reason for refusing the development or any adverse impacts 

of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed 

against the NPPF policies as a whole.  If the Council cannot demonstrate a five-year 

housing land supply, the ‘Tilted Balance’ of NPPF paragraph 11 is engaged and this 

weighs significantly in favour of approving applications for new housing.  This must be 

covered in the assessment. 

 

25. Officer reports do currently contain a section that brings together sustainability as 

defined within the NPPF and appropriate weight to be applied to the planning merit of the 

application due to the ‘Tilted Balance’ and the Council’s lack of an ability to demonstrate 

a 5YHLS. 

 

26. The Working Group also supports the idea of creating a separate glossary document for 

refence purposes by Members pulling together a range of technical terms and acronyms. 

 

New Planning Decision-Making Protocol 

 

27. The Working Group concludes that depending on how the Committee decides to deal 

with the issues arising here a logical outcome might be the creation and adoption (for 

inclusion in the Constitution) of a single Planning Decision-Making Protocol.  This would 

draw together all the various components of advice and guidance already in the 

Constitution, as refreshed and added to, in one single document. 

 

 

 

 

________________ 

 

 

(see below for existing Planning Appeals Protocol)  

Page 18



APPENDIX A 

9 
 

MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL PLANNING APPEALS PROTOCOL 
 

1. ROLE OF MEMBERS IN COMMITTEE PLANNING APPEALS  

 

1.1 Householder Appeal 

 

1.1.1 The Member role is a collective Committee responsibility given that the critical factor 

with householder appeals, which do not involve providing any additional 

supplementary statements, is to ensure that the Committee’s reasons for overturning 

Officer report recommendations are clear and based on sound planning reasons. 

 

1.2 Member Involvement in Written Representation, Informal Hearing & Public 

Inquiry Appeals   

 

1.2.1 Where the Committee overturns a recommendation, in addition to agreeing the 

reasons for refusal it would be sensible for the Committee to identify which 

member(s), subject to being suitably briefed, should to be involved with any 

subsequent appeal to help strengthen the Councils case. There are three options 

available to Committee any of which may be selected at the time the Committee 

decision is taken and thereby recorded in the Minutes. The Member(s) nominated by 

Committee to engage with any subsequent appeal include: 

The Chairman of the Committee. 

The Chairman of the Committee, and a local ward Member. 

The proposer /or seconder of the motion at Committee. 

 

1.2.2 It should be made clear that the nominating of a Member is not mandatory and 

entirely at the discretion of the determining Committee.  Where a Member is 

nominated it is important that he/she understands the nature of the role as set out 

below, and that their appearance at a hearing or inquiry will be wholly as a 

representative of the Council to support the case around the Committee’s decision. 

 

1.3 Written Representation Appeal 

 

1.3.1 Written representation appeals are the quickest and simplest appeals requiring 

Member involvement.  They require a statement and site visit but these appeals are 

usually for smaller scale development such as a single dwelling or change of use.  

 

1.3.2 Where the Committee overturns the recommendation the nominated Member will be 

engaged with the following: 

 Letter sent to advise the nominated Member about the appeal, the name of the 

case officer and the date the Statement is due; 

 Nominated Member should liaise with the case officer if required to discuss 

the policies, content to provide the outline for the Council Statement and cost 

claim (if relevant).  Members’ comments need to be made in writing to the 

case Officer.  

 Typed statement with any necessary appendices to be prepared by the case 

officer. The nominated Member to review the Councils statement and make 

amendments where required and send back to the Officer.  

Page 19



APPENDIX A 

10 
 

Nominated Member to be advised of the date of the site visit.  

1.4 Informal Hearing Appeal 

 

1.4.1 Where the Committee overturns the recommendation the nominated Member(s) will 

be engaged with the following: 

 Letter sent to advise the nominated Member about the appeal, the name of the 

case officer and the date the Statement is due; 

 The nominated Member should liaise with the case officer if required to 

discuss the policies, content to provide the outline for the Council Statement 

and cost claim (if relevant).  Member comments where required need to be 

made in writing and forwarded to the case Officer.  

 Typed statement with any necessary appendices to be prepared by the case 

officer or planning consultant.  The nominated Member to review the 

Council’s statement and make amendments where required and send back to 

the Officer.  

 Prior to the hearing, a meeting will be held between the Member and case 

officer and external witnesses and solicitor if necessary to consider the issues 

and the appellant’s case. 

 Nominated Member to attend the Informal Hearing either in an observer or as 

part of the Council team.  

 Nominated Member to be advised of the date of the site visit.  

 

1.5 Public Inquiry 

 

1.5.1 Where the Committee overturns the recommendation the nominated Member(s) will 

be engaged with the following: 

 Letter sent to advise the nominated Member about the appeal, the name of the 

case officer and the date the Statement is due. 

 The nominated Member should liaise with the case Officer to discuss the 

policies, content to provide the outline for the Council Statement and cost 

claim (if relevant).  Member comments where required need to be made in 

writing and forwarded to the case Officer.  

 Typed statement with any necessary appendices to be prepared by the case 

officer or planning consultant.  The nominated Member to review the Councils 

statement and make amendments where required and send back to the officer.  

 Prior to the Public Inquiry, a meeting will be convened by the Council’s legal 

representative between the Member, the case officer and any external 

witnesses / experts where necessary to consider the issues / tactics and the 

appellant’s case. 

 Nominated Member to attend the Public Inquiry either in an observer or as part 

of the Council team.  

 Nominated Member to be advised of the date and attend the site visit where 

required.   

 

Page 20



APPENDIX A 

11 
 

1.6 Director of Service Delivery   

 

1.6.1 In managing the Planning Appeal process the Director of Service Delivery will: 

 Determine on a case by case basis where it would be necessary to either seek 

the nominated Member or an external planning consultant to represent the 

Council at either an Informal Hearing or Public Inquiry. 

 Wherever practical seek to recover the Council’s costs from applicants in 

preparing for and undertaking an appeal. 

 Where required, request the local Ward Member assistance in circumstances 

where local knowledge is paramount and invaluable to the appeal including 

appeals that may arise from planning enforcement action and a refusal of a 

Certificate of Lawfulness.  

 

1.7 The Role of Members as Private Individuals and Parish /Town Councillors  
 

1.7.1 In situations where Members have clearly demonstrated a ‘closed mind’ on a planning 

application prior to consideration by Committee, they will not be permitted to be 

involved in the determination of that application or the subsequent appeal statement or 

process.  In this case, or where a Member does not support the Council decision 

irrespective of the type of appeal, a Member may decide to make their submissions to 

an appeal which will be in either a personal capacity only or in their role as a Town / 

Parish Councillor. 

 

1.7.2 It may be that on occasions electors may expect that their Ward Member(s) will attend 

a hearing or inquiry to further represent their interests and view.  This can be seen as 

part of the democratic process, and a Ward Member wishing to do so should take the 

opportunity of first being fully briefed by Officers on all the issues the subject of the 

appeal. 

 

 

2. REVIEW OF REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

2.1 On occasions during the course of an appeal the Council may formally be requested 

by or on behalf of the appellant to reconsider its reasons for refusal.  Any review shall 

be undertaken at the level the original decision was made and on report of the Director 

of Service Delivery only. 

 

2.2 Where a committee has not formally reconsidered its reasons for refusal, and there is 

insufficient time to do so, then in order to ensure the Council minimises its exposure 

to cost awards against it, the Director of Service Delivery in managing the appeal 

process will act in consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Chairman of the 

relevant Planning Committee and the nominated Member. 

 

 

 

 

Originally endorsed by Planning and Licensing Committee - November 2012 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

to 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 JANUARY 2023 
 
POTENTIAL SCRUTINY WORKPLAN ITEM - PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 To present to the Committee a report on this potential scrutiny workplan item. 1.1

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the Committee receives this report on the issues and concerns previously 
raised, and considers whether the information provided offers an acceptable level of 
assurance or that more detailed scrutiny or further information is required. 

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 At the last meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, it was agreed that a full 3.1

report on identified issues be brought back to a meeting in January 2023.  This 
followed consideration of a scrutiny request from Councillor C Swain raising similar 
concerns to two other previous scrutiny requests from other Members.  The 
Committee was previously content for a watching brief to be kept following a review 
of Enforcement Policy last year and steps being taken earlier this year to increase 
the resource to support this function. 
 

 The Committee’s Working Group discussed the various issues with Officers at its last 3.2
meeting to assist the process of ensuring that the identified issues and concerns 
raised by Members were properly addressed in the report back to the Committee.  
The report for the Committee’s consideration is at APPENDIX A, and the relevant 
Officers will be available at the meeting to assist the Committee as required.   
 

4. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 Robust overview and scrutiny work and learning from what comes out of it 4.1

contributes to the performance and value theme of the Corporate Plan.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – None directly, although helping to ensure that the 

Council’s approach to Planning Enforcement is robust and effective will be of 
benefit to the residents of the District. 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



(iii) Impact on Risk – None 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – None.  

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None. 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None.  
 
(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – None.  

 
 
Enquiries to: Cheryl Hughes, Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager.  
 

Page 24



APPENDIX A 

1 
 

POTENTIAL SCRUTINY OF PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

 

Background and context 

1. The Committee at its last meeting decided to add this functional area to its scrutiny 

workplan.  This follows scrutiny requests from individual Members over recent months 

and the Committee having previously been content for its Working Group to keep the 

matter under review as a ‘watching brief’, particularly in relation to performance and 

resourcing. 

 

2. The main context for this scrutiny is the historical backlog of cases and an apparent lack 

of progress in dealing with it.  The enforcement lists sent periodically to Members are 

considered too lengthy and perhaps require to be broken down into Areas/Wards to 

assist Members and encourage them to respond.  The earlier concept of holding informal 

meetings of Area Committees to go through the lists was something that had not been 

happening on a consistent basis.  The main issues arising from the scrutiny requests and 

identified by the Working Group to be looked at are therefore as follows: 

 

a. Latest performance statistics detailing the historical position and indicating the actual 

and anticipated improvement 

b. Explanation of the various enforcement processes from the outset of a complaint, 

allied to the different types of action, in particular the internal 

arrangements/delegation for authorising and closing actions 

c. Resourcing – previous, current and future 

d. Approach to planning enforcement going forward having regard to the revised 

adopted Planning Enforcement Policy 

 

Performance and reporting 

3. Detailed and updated performance information is now available and included below:   

 

The recorded improvements for the Enforcement Service caseload are shown below and 

relate to improvements between 12th September and 5th December 2022: 

 

 12th September 2022 Stats 5th December 2022 Stats 

Total Caseload numbers 724 726 

Still requiring Investigation 612 574 

Backlog cases (over 1yr old) 477 (66% of total cases)  422 (58% of total cases) 

Cases actioned in 20 days 16% 36% 

* 22 New cases have been received between the 12th September and 5th December 

2022. 

The Enforcement Team is focusing its time on both the continued completion, closure 

and reduction in numbers of the backlogged caseload, as well as improving on the initial 

investigation and response on new cases within the timeframe of the first 20 days (as per 

Enforcement Policy). The continued improvement of the latter is to achieve the bench 

mark of 80% actioned in 20 days of receipt.  

 

4. A backlog of over 850 cases in April this year has already been reduced to around 574 

active on-going cases, with over 100 cases ready to be closed.  Over 200 cases have 

Page 25



APPENDIX A 

2 
 

been closed since April.  Progress in relation to the backlog has to be set against the fact 

that around 100 new cases had been opened.  It is felt that regular presentations to 

Members on the performance data will be most beneficial. 

 

5. The monitoring of performance is routinely undertaken as part of the Performance, 

Governance and Audit Committee’s remit.  In terms of how Members can assist Officers 

in managing and dealing with caseload, the idea of Members approaching Officers may 

have some value if only to provide an opportunity for feedback and an understanding of 

what is happening with the work.  There is also provision for Area Planning Committee 

Members to arrange daytime meetings with Officers to go through the lists for their 

areas, but it should be noted that this may be difficult to manage on a regular basis with 

a limited Officer resource. 

 

6. Officers acknowledge the value of individual Member involvement on cases, particularly 

to give a local perspective.  Officers further acknowledge that the monthly update lists 

are too extensive and will look at breaking them down to at least an Area and hopefully a 

Ward basis.  Work is taking place on improvements to the lists. 

 

Enforcement processes (including compliance with conditions) and delegation 

7. The authorisation and implementation of planning enforcement action is delegated to 

Officers under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and therefore the management of the 

various processes is integral to that.  While there is a detailed description of the various 

enforcement tools and what they are designed to do is included in the Planning 

Enforcement Policy, it may be helpful to Members to understand how internal delegation 

within the service area and team enables the principal delegated powers to be exercised.  

This would be particularly relevant to the actual authorisation of action in a specific form 

as well as the ability to complete and close off a case whether it be due to evidence, 

legal advice, compliance etc. 

 

8. Due to the reactive nature of Planning Enforcement services and the limited resources 

available to ensure compliance, Officers can only attend sites where evidence is 

available/a complaint has been received in relation to a suspected breach of planning 

control. The Enforcement Team does not have the facility to visit every approved site to 

ensure planning conditions are being complied with, unless it has reason to believe there 

is a contravention. 

 

9. Once investigated by an assigned Officer, every case will be assessed if it is expedient 

to take any further action on it or if the matter should be submitted for closure.  Any 

formal action decided and drafted, must be approved by the Development Manager 

(DM).  Any recommendation for the case to be concluded and closed, must similarly be 

reviewed and approved by the DM, before being formally closed. 

 

Arboricultural and Conservation matters are reviewed by subject matter experts from the 

respective fields, who will identify and raise to the Enforcement Team should remedial 

actions be required to resolve any issues. 

 

Any use of Injunctive relief measures under the legislation are subject to stricter 

evidence requirements and must be reviewed by Legal Services prior to any 

authorisation under delegated powers for the Council to take such action.  

 

Page 26



APPENDIX A 

3 
 

 

  

Resourcing 

 

10. The enhanced team structure implemented earlier this year has relied heavily on the 

appointment of contractors given the issues of recruitment and staff retention nationally.  

The intention is to recruit permanent staff. 

 

11.  

Role Appointment  Operational Time 

Lead Specialist DM  Permanent F.W.W. 

Specialist Enforcement  Permanent F.W.W. 

Case Officer Lv3 Contractor 37h contract 

Case Officer Lv2 Permanent F.W.W. 

Case Officer Lv2 Permanent F.W.W. - 20% 

Case Officer Lv1 Permanent F.W.W. 

Case Officer Lv1 (Admin) Contractor 20h contract 
*  F.W.W. – Full Working week 

 

Approach to Planning Enforcement - Policy 

 

12. The Policy was reviewed and adopted in 2021.  The approach to enforcement envisaged 

in the revised Policy was predicated on the need for an enhanced team being put in 

place.  Given the recruitment and retention difficulties experienced, there has not been 

the opportunity purposefully to implement and deliver the new Policy in terms of the 

approach.   

 

13. In view of this, the opportunity may need to be taken to further review the Policy as to 

being fit for purpose and its objectives. 

 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	6 Review of Scrutiny Workplan Item - Planning Decision-Making
	Appendix A

	7 Potential Scrutiny Workplan Item - Planning Enforcement
	Appendix A

	10 Notice of Motion Referral - Conduct Issue

